
MAYOR                      INTERIM  CITY MANAGER 

Brian West Michelle Owens 

 
CITY COUNCIL CLERK OF COUNCIL  
Monty Parks Mayor pro tem Jan LeViner 

Bill Garbett  

Spec Hosti 
Tony Ploughe CITY ATTORNEY 

Nick Sears Edward M. Hughes 

Kathryn Williams Tracy O’Connell 

CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

 

A G E N D A  
REGULAR MEETING OF TYBEE ISLAND CITY COUNCIL 

July 25, 2024 at 6:30 PM 
Please silence all cell phones during Council Meetings 

 
Opening Ceremonies 
     Call to Order 
     Invocation:  Rev. Sue Jackson, Trinity Methodist Church 
     Pledge of Allegiance 

Executive Session:  Discuss litigation, personnel and real estate 
 
Possible vote on litigation, personnel and real estate discussed in executive session 
 
Announcements 
 
Recognitions and Proclamations 

1. Jaime Spear:  Employee of the Quarter Reece Cooke 
 
Consideration of Items for Consent Agenda  
 
Consideration of the approval of the minutes of the meetings of the Tybee Island City Council 

2. Minutes, City Council Meeting, July 7, 2024 
 
City Manager Discussion and Action Items 
 
Citizens to be Heard:  Please limit comments to 4 minutes. 

3. Susan Estroff:  Sound Barrier Mat for Gas Golf Carts 
 
Consideration of Boards, Commissions and Committee Appointments 

4. Holly Grell-Lawe:  HPC Update 
 
If there is anyone wishing to speak to anything on the agenda other than the Public Hearings, 
please approached the podium.  Please limit your comments to 4 minutes. 
 
Consideration of Approval of Consent Agenda 
 

- Page 1 -



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

Consideration of Bids, Contracts, Agreements and Expenditures 
5. Agreement as to Terms of Appointment for City Manager, City of Tybee Island 
6. Windcave Agreement for Payment Processing 
7. Fourth Amendment to Water Tower Attachment Option and Lease Agreement 

 
Council, Officials and City Attorney Considerations and Comments 
 
Executive Session 
     Discuss litigation, personnel and real estate  
Possible vote on litigation, personnel and real estate discussed in executive session 
Adjournment 
Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are 
required to contact Jan LeViner at 912.472.5080 promptly to allow the City to make reasonable accommodations 
for those persons.   
 
*PLEASE NOTE:  Citizens wishing to speak on items listed on the agenda, other than public hearings, 
should do so during the citizens to be heard section.  Citizens wishing to place items on the council 

meeting agenda must submit an agenda request form to the City Clerk’s office by Thursday at 5:00PM 

prior to the next scheduled meeting.  Agenda request forms are available outside the Clerk’s office at City 
Hall and at www.cityoftybee.org. 
 

 

 

THE VISION OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
  

“is to make Tybee Island the premier beach community in which to live, work, and play.” 
 

 

 

THE MISSION OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
  

“is to provide a safe, secure and sustainable environment by delivering superior services through responsible 
planning, preservation of our natural and historic resources, and partnership with our community to ensure 
economic opportunity, a vibrant quality of life, and a thriving future.” 

 

 

- Page 2 -

http://www.cityoftybee.org/


File Attachments for Item:

2. Minutes, City Council Meeting, July 7, 2024

- Page 3 -



 

 

 
City Council Minutes, July 11, 2024 
 
 
Mayor West called the meeting to order at 6:30PM, July 11, 2024.  Those in attendance 
were, Nick Sears, Monty Parks, Spec Hosti, Kathryn Williams, Tony Ploughe and Bill 
Garbett.    Also attending were Michelle Owens, Interim City Manager; Bubba Hughes, 
City Attorney, Tracy O’Connell, City Attorney; and Jan LeViner, Clerk of Council.   
 
Opening Ceremonies 
     Call to Order 
     Invocation:  Jan LeViner 
     Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Consideration of Items for Consent Agenda  

 Special Meeting, June 26, 2024 (10:00AM) 

 Special Meeting:  June 26, 2024 (3:00PM) 

 Special Meeting:  June 27, 2024, Second Reading of the proposed Millage Rate 

 Minutes, Regular Meeting:  June 27, 2024 (As Amended) 

 Tybee Island Maritime Academy - Tybee Island Police MOU 

 Coastal Region Metropolitan Planning Organization - MOU 

 
If there is anyone wishing to speak to anything on the agenda other than the 
Public Hearings, please approach the podium.  Please limit your comments to 
4 minutes 
Ben Goggins approached Mayor and Council to speak to the Non-profit Grant Funding 
in regard to the MLK organization.  Mayor West thanked Mr. Goggins. 
Dawn Shay approached Mayor and Council.  Ms. Shay asked Mayor and Council to treat 
all non-profit organizations fairly and allocated monies fairly as well.  Mayor West thanked 
Ms. Shay. 
 
Spec Hosti made a motion to approve the consent agenda.  Kathryn Williams 
seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve, 6-0. 
 
Public Hearings 
Appeal of Actions Sec 7-100 regarding denial of tree permit, Applicant Harry 

Drummond, 2 Carpenter Road.  Ms. Owens stated this is 2 Carpenter Road and it is 

a single-family home in the Fort Screven Historic District. The applicant is requesting to 

remove a palm tree that is located on city property that's near his driveway. The palm 

trees are on the City's significant tree list and it's protected by the ordinance. Ms. Owens 

continued, the application was denied by Staff and the Planning Commission also denied, 

5-1. This tree is one that is being reviewed as part of the Land Development Code and 

that tree may potentially come off the Significant Tree List but it is on there right now. 

The applicant has asked to remove it because he feels it blocks his driveway, and it makes 

it difficult for them to back out of their driveway. Brent Levy, City Arborist, visited the 

- Page 4 -Item #2.



 

 

property and reported at the Planning Commission meeting he did not feel like it was in 

the way. Also, there was discussion about the potential of moving the tree and the 

arborist has ruled if that tree were to be moved, it is of a variety that would more than 

likely survive. Mr. Drummond approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Drummond stated he 

and his wife moved to Tybee Island about a year ago and the tree has been a problem 

for them.  He further explained the difficulty they have backing out of the garage and 

explained he has concerns if a storm comes that the tree will fall on the power lines.  

Mayor West thanked Mr. Drummond.  Mr. Ploughe stated he listened to Mr. Drummond 

at the Planning Commission Meeting and the City has the authority to move the tree to 

the other side of the driveway. Mr. Drummond stated he is willing to do that and another 

option would be for him to plant another tree somewhere on his property.  Mr. Garbett 

stated moving the tree is not unreasonable and stated there are limitations on how wide 

a driveway could be in a 25’ property line.  He continued, the house has been there since 

1986 and the pine is still standing. He then recommended Mayor and Council table.    

Mayor West stated the petitioner can either wait to see if the Code is altered so this 

type of tree may come off the list or you can come back with a request to move the tree, 

not to cut it down. Nick Sears made a motion to deny.  Bill Garbett seconded.  

DISCUSSION:  Ms. Williams stated she believes that a palm tree should not be on the 

Significant Tree List as it is a “woody herb” and not a tree.   Ms. Owens recommended 

Mr. Drummond reach out to the Planning and Zoning Office and speak to Lisa Schaaf. 

Voting in favor to deny were Nick Sears, Monty Parks, Kathryn Williams, Tony Ploughe 

and Bill Garbett.  Voting against was Spec Hosti.  Motion to deny approved, 5-1. 

Consideration of Bids, Contracts, Agreements and Expenditures 
2024-2025 Non-profit Grant Funding Request and Recommendation. Monty 
Parks stated he would like to read a proposal for funding of the non-profits, line by line 
item.  He continued:  Tybee Clean Beach, $10,000; Tybee Arts Association, $10,000; 
Tybee Island Farmers Market, $135.00; Tybee Post Theater, $10,000; Tybee 
Beautification Association, $5,500; Friends of Cockspur Lighthouse, $10,000; Fresh Air 
Home, $4,800; Manomet, $7,500; Historical Society, $10,000; American Legion, $10,000; 
Irish Heritage Committee, $3,500; Mariene Science Center, $10,000; Tybee Island  
Festival Association, $10,000;  Tybee MLK $10,000; TIMA, $25,000; and Marine Rescue 
Squadron, $3,000.  This comes to $139,435 with $765.00 remaining.  Ms. Williams asked 
if that was a motion. Mr. Parks confirmed.  Monty Parks made a motion to approve the 
amended proposal.  Bill Garbett seconded.  DISCUSSION:  Mr. Plough stated he was 
happy with what Staff proposed as recommendations in the packet before them tonight 
and thought those were reasonable.  He also appreciated that effort of the Staff. Mr. 
Hosti stated he agreed with Staff recommendations and just to let the audience know 
that the $40,000 that was supposed to go to TIMA was reduced.  Voting in favor were 
Nick Sears, Monty Parks, Kathryn Williams, and Bill Garbett.  Voting against were Spec 
Hosti and Tony Ploughe. Vote to approve as amended, 4-2.   
 
Research Services Agreement:  GA Southern University Research and Service 

Foundation and City of Tybee Island. Michell Owens stated this is the Resident 

Sentiment Study as opposed to the Economic Study that was previously discussed.  After 

the Tourism Study there was a desire to hear what residents felt about tourism in the 

- Page 5 -Item #2.



 

 

community. What is before you tonight is the contract for the Study which we will try to 

figure out resident’s sentiments towards tourism.   There is another Study that will be 

coming to you which is an Economic Study.  Ms. Owens stated she has spoken with 

Georgia Southern about the Study and it will be forthcoming.  Once the contract is 

approved by Mayor and Council it will go back to Georgia Southern.   They will begin to 

develop the questions that will be on a part of the survey. Mr. Sears stated this is not 

what he intended as it is a broader and he does not believe the Economic Research 

Department of Georgia Southern is the entity that should be doing this.  He does not 

believe Mayor and Council need to know what residents of other cities think about 

tourism.  He also feels we need to move back a little and to rethink, which would probably 

save the City a great deal of money.  Ms. Owens stated for some context, this was the 

Study that originally was to be done by a different company that was much more 

expensive.  Mayor and Council had the conversation at a workshop to go back to Georgia 

Southern as they did such a good job on the Tourism Study and now to have them do 

the Residents Sentiment Study.  The intent when they speak about reaching out to other 

cities is to see the types of questions that are asked and used to probe resident’s 

experiences and try to understand their perspective.   Not necessarily that we want their 

experiences but we want to know what kinds of questions have worked the best to get 

information that will be useful for the Study.  Ms. Owens continued, Georgia Southern 

did the Tourism Study in 2023 and they did find one prior to that many years ago which 

understands the seasons in the market and conditions on Tybee.  She thinks that part 

was nixed due to the fact on how it was being paid for as Visit Tybee was paying for half 

of it.  She feels there were concerns about that group paying for part of a study that was 

going to be looking at residents and might be a predisposition for skewered results. But 

we are paying for the entire study, so I don't think that that concern is still valid at this 

point. Georgia Southern did a great job with a Tourism Study and she feels they could do 

a just a good job with the Residents Sediment Study. Council at some point had asked to 

be able to submit suggestions for the questionnaire and she asked they send her 

questions so she can get those to Georgia Southern.  Ms. Williams asked if they involved 

sociologists on their team or just economists? Ms. Owens stated no, they will involve 

whoever is needed.  Bill McKay usually leads the team but he is not the only one working 

on it so it will not just be an economist’s perspective. Ms. Owens reminded everyone this 

is the City’s study, and we can change as needed.  Mr. Garbett stated a year ago he 

would be in favor of this but right now circumstance have changed, and he does not see 

the need for this like he did earlier.  He feels there is a more productive ways to spend 

$35,000.  Right now, there were some things in the survey that he could nitpick such as 

why they are going to ask other communities how they feel about their public safety, 

trash collection and other utilities.  He thanked Ms. Owens for the effort.  Ms. Owens 

stated this is something the community asked the Staff to do as a companion to the 

Tourism Study.  Mayor West stated there is opposition as you feel this is more of an 

economic orientation than a sociology orientation.  Mr. Sears stated he feels the survey 

is more economically oriented and he would like to come back with suggestions about 

how to make it fit.  He would like to step back and refocus on the Study and make it 

simpler.  Mayor West stated it is important that professionals help design the Study 

- Page 6 -Item #2.



 

 
 

correctly as if it is not done correctly it could make your study invalid.  Mr. Garbett stated 

with the Business School doing a Consumer Sentiment Survey, they probably have 

marketing departments who specialize in consumer sentiment.  Ms. Williams asked if it 

would be appropriate to table or postpone this so Council could review the questions 

more thoroughly then get our feedback to Ms. Owens.  Ms. O’Connell asked Ms. Williams 

for clarification in tabling this Study.  She asked if this would this be so the Council can 

review questions.  Ms. Williams responded no; it would be to review what Council would 

want to submit to Georgia Southern.  Ms. Owens stated they have not developed the 

questions and if Mayor and Council approve tonight, it can be approved with the condition 

the Council will have sufficient time to craft questions and also be a part of what the 

questionnaire will look like.  Mr. Sears shared his concerns as to why Mayor and Council 

are doing the Study as he does not feel this would be helpful to Tybee.  Ms. Williams 

stated with the first Study that was done there were funding issues and it did not happen.  

After going through the budget process this year, it has made her rethink the value of 

conducting a Study right now and would like to wait to see the revenue stream.  Ms. 

Owens stated the money is in the budget and the quote came in lower than two years 

ago and the price in line with studies of this nature.  Mr. Garbett stated he preferred to 

table the Study and have Ms. Owens talk to the University and ask if they cut the price 

significantly for a more specific Resident Sentiment Study and not utilities and how they 

feel about public safety.  He continued, the survey has not been prepared and that would 

be the bulk of the work.   Ms. Owens stated factoring in issues like public safety and 

utilities are relevant as you would want to know the impact the tourism is having on 

garbage collection for instance.  Mr. Ploughe stated it sounds to him like the group still 

wants to be involved in the scope and making scope changes.    Bill Garbett made a 

motion to table.  Nick Sears seconded.  DISCUSSION:  Mr. Hosti expressed his 

concerns that the City is questioning the ability of the College to do the Study.  Voting in 

favor were Nick Sears, Monty Parks, Kathryn Williams, Tony Ploughe and Bill Garbett.  

Voting against was Spec Hosti.  Motion to approve, 5-1. 

 
Monty Parks made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session to discuss litigation, real 
estate and personnel.  Kathryn Williams seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve, 
6-0. 
Monty Parks made a motion to return to regular session.  Spec Hosti seconded.  Vote 
was unanimous to approve., 6-0.   
Spec Hosti made a motion to adjourn.  Bill Garbett seconded.  Vote was unanimous 
to approve, 6-0. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 7:55PM. 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Janet LeViner, MMC 
Clerk of Council 

- Page 7 -Item #2.



File Attachments for Item:

5. Agreement as to Terms of Appointment for City Manager, City of Tybee Island

- Page 8 -



1 

 

STATE OF GEORGIA )   

    )   

COUNTY OF CHATHAM )   

 

AGREEMENT AS TO TERMS OF APPOINTMENT FOR CITY MANAGER 

FOR THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND, GEORGIA 
 

 This Agreement made and entered into the         day of                           

_______________, 2024, by and between the City of Tybee Island, Georgia (hereinafter “the 

City”); and Bret Bell (hereinafter “the City Manager” or “Bell”).   

 WHEREAS, by Charter of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, the position of City 

Manager was created; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City conducted a diligent search for a person 

to fill the position of City Manager and now desire to appoint and have appointed Bret Bell as 

City Manager, and Bell desires to accept and has accepted such appointment;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions flowing to 

each party, the parties do agree as follows: 

Section 1.  Appointment of City Manager and Duties 

 1.1 By execution of this agreement, the City affirms its appointment of Bell by and 

through the Mayor and Council and Bell acceptance of such an appointment in the capacity as 

City Manager as that position is defined in the charter for the City of Tybee Island.  Such 

appointment shall continue unless terminated as set forth herein.   

Section 2.  Termination 

 2.1 Either party may terminate the Agreement and Bell’s appointment at any time 

after the execution of the Agreement upon 90 days written notice to the other party.   

- Page 9 -Item #5.



 2 

2.2 Should a majority of the entire Council (four members) vote to terminate the 

services of Bell “without cause,” then within ten (10) business days following such vote, the 

Council shall cause Bell to be paid any accrued and unpaid salary and benefits earned, including 

personal time off, holiday time and insurance prior to the date of termination based on a forty 

(40) hour work week. Within forty-five (45) calendar days following the vote to terminate Bell’s 

employment, the Council shall cause Bell to be paid a lump sum severance pay equal to six (6) 

months of his base salary as liquidated damages and full and complete payment and satisfaction 

of any claims of Bell of whatsoever nature arising out of this Agreement or otherwise. As 

consideration for such payment, Bell shall, prior to receipt thereof, execute and deliver to the 

City a general release of the City and its Council members and its officers, agents, and 

employees for all acts and actions (whether accrued or subsequently accruing) from the 

beginning of time until the date of release, said release to be prepared by the City Attorney.  

 2.3 In the event Bell is terminated for “just cause,” the City shall have no obligation 

to pay the amounts outlined above in this Agreement.  For purposes of this Agreement, “just 

cause” is defined and limited for purposes of this Agreement to any of the following: 

a. Malfeasance in performance of the City Manager’s duties and 

responsibilities. 

b. Conviction of or a plea of guilty or no contest to a felony crime, whether 

or not adjudication is withheld. 

c. Gross dereliction of duties. 

d. Violation of any substantive City policy, rule, or regulation, which would 

subject any other City employee to termination. 

   e. The commission of any fraudulent act against the interest of the City. 

- Page 10 -Item #5.



 3 

f. The commission of any act which involves moral turpitude, or which 

causes the City disrepute. 

g. Violation of the International City/County Management Association Code 

of Ethics. 

h. Willful misuse, conversion or misappropriation by Bell without authority 

of public property or public funds entrusted to him. 

 i. Any other act of a similar nature of the same or greater seriousness. 

 2.4 In the event of termination by Bell by written notice to the City, no severance or 

other benefits will be owed and, if the City elects to accept less than 90 days’ notice, Bell will 

cease receiving compensation upon ceasing active work for the City, but will be compensated for 

all accrued unpaid compensation and benefits. 

2.5 If at any time during the existence hereof, Bell resigns following a suggestion, 

whether formal or informal, by the Mayor and Council that he resign, then, in that event, Bell 

may, at his option, be deemed to be terminated without cause at the date of such suggestion 

within the context of the liquidated damages provision provided herein. 

2.6 If Bell dies prior to the termination of the Agreement, the Agreement shall then 

terminate and the City shall pay to Bell’s estate as soon as possible all salary or expense 

reimbursement accrued through the date of his death.  The City shall not be under any obligation 

to pay any other amounts of any kind to his estate or heirs and shall not be obligated for the 

payment of the amounts hereinbefore designated as liquidated damages.   

Section 3 – Term of Agreement 

3.1 This Agreement shall commence on the 3rd day of September, 2024 and continue 

to December 31, 2024 and shall automatically renew for one year periods thereafter unless either 

- Page 11 -Item #5.



 4 

party notifies the other party of non-renewal 90 days prior to the expiration hereof; provided, 

however, that this Agreement may be terminated earlier as provided by Section 2 of this 

Agreement.  Non-renewal by the City of this Agreement on its anniversary date will be treated 

the same as a termination without cause and the City shall pay to Bell the same liquidated 

damages that would be paid due to Section 2 and Bell shall execute the release described in 

Section 2. 

Section 4.  Notices 

 4.1 All notices required or permitted to be given under the Agreement, shall be given 

by personal service upon or certified mail, return receipt requested effective upon the date of 

personal service or on the date of mailing, to the other parties at the following addresses or to 

such other addresses as either may designate in writing to the other: 

If to the City:   

    Mayor, City of Tybee Island 

    Post Office Box 2749 

    Tybee Island, Georgia 31328 

 

  If to Bell:  (Address to be Provided) 

Section 5.  Performance of Duties 

 5.1 Bell shall diligently and conscientiously devote his time and attention and his best 

efforts to discharge his duties as City Manager.  Other office or employment for enumeration 

while so employed will only be permissible after coordination with the Mayor and Council and 

an agreement pertaining thereto is reached.   

 5.2 Bell shall perform such duties and responsibilities as outlined in the Charter of the 

City and any job description which may be provided to him as either may from time to time be 

- Page 12 -Item #5.



 5 

amended, as well as perform such other duties as may reasonably be required of him by the 

Mayor and Council.   

 5.3 Bell shall at all times discharge his duties and consultation with the Mayor and 

Council, keeping them informed of his actions and decisions within the scope of his authority.  

He shall be responsible to the Mayor and Council for the proper and efficient administration of 

all affairs of the City except as may otherwise be provided by law. 

Section 6. Compensation 

 6.1 Bell’s compensation shall be as provided herein. 

 Commencing the 3rd day of September, 2024, the City shall pay to Bell as compensation 

for his services the sum of $165,000.00 annually, herein referred to as “annual base salary” 

subject to withholding for appropriate items such as federal and state income taxes and FICA. 

 6.2 At least annually, the Mayor and Council shall consider a merit increase in 

addition to any other increases that may be considered and whether to award such an increase 

and the amount thereof is to be solely within the discretion of the Mayor and Council.  Interim 

reviews may be conducted at any time at the discretion of the Mayor and Council. 

 6.3 The annual gross compensation shall be paid in equal periodic installments with 

such frequency as other City employees are normally paid. 

Section 7.  Automobile Allowance 

7.1. In addition to all other compensation provided herein and in recognition of the 

fact that Bell’s duties require that he shall have use of his personal automobile in connection with 

his employment, the City shall pay a $600.00 monthly car allowance for Bell to be used to 

purchase, lease, or own , operate and maintain a vehicle.  Bell shall be responsible for paying for 

liability, property damage and comprehensive insurance coverage upon such vehicle and shall 

- Page 13 -Item #5.



 6 

further be responsible for all expenses attendant to the purchase, operation, maintenance, repair 

and regular replacement of said vehicle.  This car allowance is in lieu of any mileage 

reimbursement for any travel related to his employment.  

Section 8.  Benefits 

 8.1. In addition to all other compensation provided herein, the City shall budget, pay 

and provide to Bell: 

 a. any and all benefits which are provided to full-time City employees as a 

whole;  

 b. family care under the City’s health plan will be provided to Bell’s family; 

 c. credited 10 days annual leave and 10 days sick leave as of the first day of 

employment and thereafter Bell will accrue annual leave at the same rate as 

employees with ten years of service and sick leave at the rate as may be provided 

to City employees.  If extensive hours are worked, additional compensated time 

off will be allowed during the year as approved by the Mayor; 

 d. coverage under liability insurance provided by the City; 

 e. term life insurance naming Bret as insured in an amount equal to 

$25,000.00;  

 f. hospital, medical and dental insurance coverage provided to full-time City 

employees as a whole; 

 g. professional dues and subscriptions for Bell’s participation in 

organizations necessary and desirable for professional growth and for the good of 

the City; 

- Page 14 -Item #5.



 7 

 h. travel subsistence and related expenses (except mileage) for Bell 

associated with official travel, meetings and conferences to continue the 

professional development of Bell and/or to pursue necessary official functions for 

the City;   

 i. certain expenses  reasonably incurred by Bell in furtherance of his duties 

as City Manager.  The City agrees to reimburse or to pay said general expenses 

and the finance director is hereby authorized to disburse such monies upon receipt 

of duly executed expense or petty cash vouchers, receipts, statements or personal 

affidavits;  

 j. regular opportunities for professional training and advancement in order to 

enhance Bell’s contributions to the citizens of the City;  

 k. enrollment in the City’s Defined Benefit Pension Plan and the City is 

responsible for contributions as provided for City employees as a whole; and 

 l. a cellphone for City business.  

Section 9.  Equipment and Records  

9.1 All equipment supplied by the City and all records and files of Bell shall be the 

property of the City and shall remain such property during the course of the Agreement and upon 

termination.   

Section 10.  Indemnification 

 10.1 The City shall defend, save harmless and indemnify Bell against any tort, 

professional liability claim or demand or other legal action, whether groundless or otherwise, 

arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of his duties.  The City 

shall pay the amount of any settlement or judgment rendered thereon.  Notwithstanding the 

- Page 15 -Item #5.



 8 

1728746.1 

foregoing, no indemnity obligation shall apply to or cover any intentional or willful tort or 

willful and wanton negligence or any act committed while operating a vehicle under the 

influence of alcohol, controlled substances or dangerous drugs (other than those for which a 

valid prescription exist) each of said terms being as defined by Georgia law.   

Section 11.  Entire Agreement, Modification, Binding Agreement 

 11.1 The text herein shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties.  This 

Agreement may not be amended or modified in any manner except in writing signed and agreed 

to by each party. The Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Bell, his heirs 

at law and executors.   

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seal the 

day and year first above written.   

              City of Tybee Island, Georgia    

 

     __________________________________ 

     Brian West, Mayor 

 

Attest:__________________________ 

  Jan LeViner, Clerk 

 

     REVIEWED AND ACCEPTED BY: 

 

 

     __________________________________ 

     Bret Bell, City Manager 

 

 

Witness:_________________________ 

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_________________________________                                                             

Edward M. Hughes, Attorney for 

City of Tybee Island, Georgia 

- Page 16 -Item #5.



File Attachments for Item:

6. Windcave Agreement for Payment Processing

- Page 17 -



- Page 18 -Item #6.



- Page 19 -Item #6.



- Page 20 -Item #6.



- Page 21 -Item #6.



- Page 22 -Item #6.



- Page 23 -Item #6.



- Page 24 -Item #6.



- Page 25 -Item #6.



- Page 26 -Item #6.



- Page 27 -Item #6.



- Page 28 -Item #6.



- Page 29 -Item #6.



- Page 30 -Item #6.



- Page 31 -Item #6.



- Page 32 -Item #6.



- Page 33 -Item #6.



- Page 34 -Item #6.



- Page 35 -Item #6.



- Page 36 -Item #6.



- Page 37 -Item #6.



- Page 38 -Item #6.



- Page 39 -Item #6.



- Page 40 -Item #6.



- Page 41 -Item #6.



File Attachments for Item:

7. Fourth Amendment to Water Tower Attachment Option and Lease Agreement

- Page 42 -



      

Market: Georgia      
Cell Site Number: 410-013     
Cell Site Name: Butler Avenue Water Tank    
Fixed Asset Number: 10017258 
 

 
FOURTH AMENDMENT TO WATER TOWER ATTACHMENT OPTION AND LEASE 

AGREEMENT 
 
 

THIS FOURTH AMENDMENT TO WATER TOWER ATTACHMENT OPTION AND 
LEASE AGREEMENT (“Fourth Amendment”), dated as of the latter of the signature dates 
below, is by and between The City of Tybee Island, having a mailing address of P.O. Box 2749, 
Tybee Island, GA 31328 (“Landlord”) and New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, a Delaware 
limited liability company, as successor in interest to BellSouth Personal Communications, Inc., a 
Delaware corporation, d/b/a Bell South Mobility DCS, having a mailing address of 1025 Lenox 
Park Blvd. NE, 3rd Floor, Atlanta, GA 30319 (“Tenant”). 

 
 WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant entered into a Water Tower Attachment Option and 
Lease Agreement dated October 10, 1997, as amended by a certain First Amendment to Water 
Tower Attachment Option and Lease Agreement dated December 12, 2005, as amended by that 
certain Second Amendment to Water Tower Attachment Option and Lease Agreement dated 
May 29, 2014, as further amended by that certain Third Amendment to Water Tower Attachment 
Option and Lease Agreement dated April 13, 2018, whereby Landlord leased to Tenant certain 
Premises, therein described, that are a portion of the Property located at 111 Butler Avenue, 
Tybee Island, Georgia, 31328 ( “Agreement”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to amend the Agreement to reflect that Tenant is 
authorized to add, modify, and replace certain equipment on the Leased Area as listed below and 
set forth in Schedule II-B attached hereto and incorporated by reference; and 
 

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to amend the Agreement to modify the notice 
section thereof; and  

 
 WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant, in their mutual interest, wish to amend the Agreement 
as set forth below accordingly. 
  
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Landlord and 
Tenant agree as follows: 
 

1. Equipment. Landlord authorizes Tenant to add, modify, and replace certain equipment 
on the Leased Area as listed below and set forth in Schedule II-B.  Schedule II-A shall 
be deleted in its entirety and replaced with Schedule II-B attached hereto and 
incorporated into the Agreement as if fully set out therein.   
 

2. One-Time Administrative Fee.  Tenant shall pay to Landlord a one-time payment in the 
amount of Five  Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($500.00), payable within ninety (90) days 
of the Effective Date. 

- Page 43 -Item #7.



      

 
 

3. Notices.  Section 17 of the Agreement, which was inadvertently deleted and replaced in 
the Second Amendment, is hereby reinstated to its original content. Section 19 of the 
Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:    

 
NOTICES.  All notices, requests and demands hereunder will be given by first class certified or 
registered mail, return receipt requested, or by a nationally recognized overnight courier, postage 
prepaid, to be effective when properly sent and received, refused or returned undelivered.  
Notices will be addressed to the parties as follows.   
 
If to Tenant: New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC 

Attn: Tower Asset Group - Lease Administration 
Re: Cell Site #: 410-013, Cell Site Name: Butler Avenue Water Tank,  
Fixed Asset#: 10017258 
1025 Lenox Park Blvd. NE, 3rd Floor 
Atlanta, GA 30319 
 

With copy to:  New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC  
Attn: Legal Depart – Network Operations 
Re: Cell Site #: 410-013, Cell Site Name: Butler Avenue Water Tank  
Fixed Asset#: 10017258 
208 S. Akard Street 
Dallas, TX  75202-4206 
 

A copy sent to the Legal Department is an administrative step which alone does not constitute 
legal notice.  
 
If to Landlord:   City Manager 

   City of Tybee Island 
   P.O. Box 2749  

                           Tybee Island, Georgia 31328  
 
Either party hereto may change the place for the giving of notice to it by thirty (30) days prior 
written notice to the other as provided herein. 
 

4. Other Terms and Conditions Remain. In the event of any inconsistencies between the 
Agreement and this Fourth Amendment, the terms of this Fourth Amendment shall 
control.  Except as expressly set forth in this Fourth Amendment, the Agreement 
otherwise is unmodified and remains in full force and effect.  Each reference in the 
Agreement to itself shall be deemed also to refer to this Fourth Amendment. 

 
5. Capitalized Terms.  All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the 

same meanings as defined in the Agreement. 
  

[Signatures on next page] 

- Page 44 -Item #7.



      

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused their properly authorized 
representatives to execute and seal this Fourth Amendment on the dates set forth below. 
 
“LANDLORD”  
       
Signed, sealed and delivered   The City of Tybee Island 
in the presence of:     
__________________________   By: _______________________ 
Name:  ____________________  Name:  ____________________  
Unofficial Witness    Title:      
      Date:      
_______________________________ 
Name: _________________________ 
Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires: __________ 
 
 
 
 [NOTARIAL SEAL] 
 
 
“TENANT”  
       
Signed, sealed and delivered   New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, 
in the presence of:    a Delaware limited liability company 
_______________________________  By: AT&T Mobility Corporation 
Name: _________________________  Its: Manager 
Unofficial Witness    By: __________________________ 
      Name: Leonard W. Lindros III 
      Title: Area Manager of Network Engineering 
      Date: _________________________ 
_______________________________ 
Name: _________________________ 
Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires: __________ 
 
 
 
 [NOTARIAL SEAL] 
  

- Page 45 -Item #7.



      

EXHIBIT II-B 
(Page 1 of 3) 

 
 

Tower Equipment to be located at the at the 155’ RAD. 
 
(3) Commscope NNH4-65B-R6H4 panel Antennas 
(3) Ericsson AIR6419 B77G panel antennas 
(3) Ericsson AIR6419 B77D panel antennas 
(3) Commscope SBJAH4-1D65C-DL panel antennas 
(3) Ericsson RRUS-11 
(3) Ericsson 4490 B5/B12 
(3) Ericsson 4415 B25 
(6) Ericsson RRUS-32 
(3) Ericsson B14 4478 
(3) Raycap DC6-48-60-18-8F 
(6) Raycap DC2-48-60-0-9E 
(1) Raycap DC9-48-60-24-8C-EV 
(12) 1-5/8” Coax 
(4) 7/8” Power Cables 
(2) 1” Power Cables 
(2) 3/8” Fiber Cables 
(1) .39” Fiber Cable 
(1) 3/8” RET Cable 

- Page 46 -Item #7.



      

EXHIBIT II-B 
(Page 2 of 3) 

 
See attached exhibit comprised of 2 pages, dated 7-3-2024, prepared by Tower Engineering 

Professionals. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Page 47 -Item #7.



      

EXHIBIT II-B 
(Page 3 of 3) 

 
See attached exhibit comprised of 2 pages, dated 7-3-2024, prepared by Tower Engineering 

Professionals. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Page 48 -Item #7.


	Top
	Item #1.	Jaime Spear:  Employee of the Quarter Reece Cooke
	Item #2.	Minutes, City Council Meeting, July 7, 2024
	20240711Minutes

	Item #3.	Susan Estroff:  Sound Barrier Mat for Gas Golf Carts
	Item #4.	Holly Grell-Lawe:  HPC Update
	Item #5.	Agreement as to Terms of Appointment for City Manager, City of Tybee Island
	Contract - Bell (4871-8681-0831.1) FINAL 7.18.24 (4888-3428-9874.1)

	Item #6.	Windcave Agreement for Payment Processing
	Windcave Tybee

	Item #7.	Fourth Amendment to Water Tower Attachment Option and Lease Agreement
	410-013 DRAFT 4TH AMEND Legal Redlines 7.3.2024

	Bottom



